
 

City of Galena, Illinois

AGENDA 
 

REGULAR CITY COUNCIL MEETING 
 

MONDAY, OCTOBER 28, 2013  
 

6:30 P.M. – CITY HALL 312 ½ NORTH MAIN STREET  
 

ITEM DESCRIPTION 
 

13C-0401. 
 
Call to Order by Presiding Officer 

13C-0402. Roll Call 
13C-0403. Establishment of Quorum 
13C-0404. Pledge of Allegiance 
13C-0405. Reports of Standing Committees 
13C-0406. Citizens Comments 

• Not to exceed 15 minutes as an agenda item 
• Not more than 3 minutes per speaker 
• No testimony on zoning items where a public hearing has been conducted 

  
 

CONSENT AGENDA CA13-20 
 

ITEM DESCRIPTION PAGE 

13C-0407. Approval of the Minutes of the Regular City Council Meeting of October 14, 
2013 

 3-6 

13C-0408. Approval of Stray Dog Pick-up Agreement with Jo Daviess County   7-9 

13C-0409. Approval of Change Order #1 for Gateway Park Project  10 

   
 

UNFINISHED BUSINESS 
 

ITEM DESCRIPTION PAGE 
 
13C-0393. 

 
Second Reading and Possible Approval of an Ordinance Vacating Part of 
Branch Street, Elm Street, Slaughter Street, and an Unnamed Right-of-Way to 
Sam and Amber Roti,3935 N. Council Hill Road 

11-13  

Page 1 of 33



 
 

NEW BUSINESS 
 

 

CALENDAR INFORMATION 

 
BOARD/COMMITTEE DATE TIME PLACE 

Historic Preservation Comm. Thurs. November 7 6:30 P.M. City Hall 

City Council Tues. November 12 6:30 P.M. City Hall 

Zoning Board of Appeals Wed. November 13 6:30 P.M. City Hall 

 
Posted: Thursday, October 24, 2013 at 4:30 p.m.    Posted By:       

ITEM DESCRIPTION PAGE 
 
13C-0410. 

 
First Reading of an Ordinance Approving the Purchasing of 1.753 Acres of 
Property Along Dewey Avenue from Sam and Amber Roti 

 14-15 

 
13C-0411. 

  
Discussion and Possible Action on a Resolution for Zoning Calendar No. 13A-
02, a Request for a Text Amendment to the Zoning Ordinance Table 
154.403.1 Permitted Land Uses to Amend the Low Density Residential District 
to Allow for Public Accommodations, Small Inns to Operate by Special Use 
Permit   

16-22 

 
13C-0412. 

 
Discussion and Possible Action on a Contract with Community Funding and 
Planning Services for Survey and Grant Writing for the Third and Rives Sewer 
Project 

23-25 

 
13C-0413. 

 
Discussion and Possible Action on Addition of High-Efficiency Lighting for City 
Hall Project 

26 

 
13C-0414. 

 
Warrants  27-33 

13C-0415. Alderpersons’ Comments  
13C-0416. City Administrator’s Report   
13C-0417. Mayor’s Report  
13C-0418. Adjournment  

Page 2 of 33



Regular Board Meeting     14 October 2013 
 

1 

MINUTES OF THE REGULAR CITY COUNCIL MEETING OF 14 OCTOBER 2013 
 
13C-0382 – CALL TO ORDER 
 
Mayor Terry Renner called the regular meeting to order at 6:30 p.m. in the Board Chambers at 
312½ North Main Street on 14 October 2013.   
 
13C-0383 – ROLL CALL 
 
Upon roll call the following members were present:  Bernstein, Fach, Greene, Kieffer, Lincoln, 
Painter, Renner 
 
13C-0384 – ESTABLISHMENT OF QUORUM 
 
Mayor Renner announced a quorum of Board members present to conduct City business.   
 
13C-0385 – PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE 
 
The Pledge was recited.   
 
13C-0386 - REPORTS OF STANDING COMMITTEES 
 
None.   
 
13C-0387 – PUBLIC COMMENTS 
 
Rick Pariser, 113 S. High Street – Pariser advised he lives on High Street and gets the drift of 
any noise at the park.  This weekend he spent two days in front of his house listening to the 
music.  It was pure bliss and much better than the battle of the bands.  Driving thru town his 
impression of the amount of people in town was that whoever planned this event deserves a 
golden star.  He commended those that helped plan the event.   
 
Pariser advised this is the third or fourth time he has brought forward a concern with the canoe 
and kayak park.  Three weeks ago he requested information.  He understood it was being 
investigated.  He feels this is getting complicated.  He advised it is a public property and people 
surrounding that site have seen a for profit business using it almost exclusively.  Council heard 
from them.  It raises a concern.  It is not a condemnation.  Is there a lease?  Is the city being 
compensated?  Are there licenses issued and when do they run to?  Pariser requested he be 
directed to where he can read the report.     
 

CONSENT AGENDA CA13-19 
 

13C-0388 – APPROVAL OF MINUTES OF THE REGULAR CITY COUNCIL MEETING OF 
SEPTEMBER 23, 2013 
 
13C-0389 – ACCEPTANCE OF AUGUST AND SEPTEMBER 2013 FINANCIAL REPORT 
 
13C-0390 – APPROVAL OF BUDGET AMENDMENT BA14-01 FOR CITY HALL PROJECT, 
ILLINOIS HISTORIC PRESERVATION AGENCY GRANT AND INSURANCE PAYMENTS 
 
13C-0391 – APPROVAL OF THE PURCHASE OF NEW COMPUTERS FOR THE POLICE 
DEPARTMENT 
 
13C-0392 – APPROVAL OF REQUEST FOR SECONDARY EMPLOYMENT BY TIM 
WUEBBEN 
 
Motion :  Kieffer moved, seconded by Lincoln, to approve Consent Agenda 13CA-19.   
 

Page 3 of 33



Regular Board Meeting     14 October 2013 
 

2 

Discussion :   None.      
 
Roll Call :  AYES: Greene, Kieffer, Lincoln, Painter, Bernstein, Renner 
  NAYS: None 
  ABSENT:  Fach 
   
  The motion carried.   
 

NEW BUSINESS 
 
13C-0393 – FIRST READING OF AN ORDINANCE VACATING PART OF BRANCH STREET, 
ELM STREET, SLAUGHTER STREET AND AN UNNAMED RIGHT-OF-WAY TO SAM AND 
AMBER ROTI, 3935 N. COUNCIL HILL ROAD 
 
Motion :  Greene moved, seconded by Painter, to approve the first reading of an ordinance 
vacating part of Branch Street, Elm Street, Slaughter Street and Unnamed Right-of-Way to Sam 
and Amber Roti, 3935 N. Council Hill Road.      
 
Discussion :  None.    
 
Roll Call :  AYES: Kieffer, Lincoln, Painter, Bernstein, Greene, Renner  
  NAYS: None 
  ABSENT:  Fach 
 
  The motion carried.   
 
13C-0394 – DISCUSSION AND POSSIBLE ACTION ON PURCHASING 1.753 ACRES OF 
PROPERTY ALONG DEWEY AVENUE FROM SAM AND AMBER ROTI 
 
Motion :  Painter moved, seconded by Bernstein, to take action to purchase 1.753 acres of 
property along Dewey Avenue from Sam and Amber Roti.     
 
Discussion :  Greene questioned why we would fence the property.  Moran advised we are not 
planning to fence the property.  Roti may fence it but the City would not participate in the cost.   
 
Roll Call :  AYES: Kieffer, Lincoln, Painter, Bernstein, Greene, Renner  
  NAYS: None 
  ABSENT:  Fach 
 
  The motion carried.   
 
13C-0395 – DISCUSSION AND POSSIBLE ACTION ON RENEWAL OF EMPLOYEE HEALTH, 
DENTAL, LIFE AND DISABILITY INSURANCE POLICIES 
 
Motion :  Bernstein moved, seconded by Painter, to approve the renewal of employee health, 
dental and life and disability insurance policies, item 13C-0395.   
 
Discussion :   Council felt the figures looked good.   
 
Roll Call :  AYES: Lincoln, Painter, Bernstein, Greene, Kieffer, Renner 
  NAYS:  None 
  ABSENT:  Fach 
   
  The motion carried.   
 
13C-0396 – WARRANTS 
 

Page 4 of 33



Regular Board Meeting     14 October 2013 
 

3 

Motion :  Lincoln moved, seconded by Greene, to approve the Warrants as presented, item 13C-
0396.   
 
Discussion :  None.   
 
Roll Call :  AYES: Painter, Bernstein, Greene, Kieffer, Lincoln, Renner 
  NAYS: None 
  ABSTAIN:  Kieffer 
  ABSENT:  Fach 
   
  The motion carried.   
 
13C-0397 – ALDERPERSONS’ COMMENTS 
 
Events  – Bernstein advised she is hearing that people still have concerns about the inequities in 
city fees for people holding events versus conducting ongoing business on city property.  In 
fairness, Bernstein feels the city may want to consider revising the current policies.   
 
Garbage  – Bernstein advised she noticed a house on Gear Street who had six bags of garbage 
out and one that had four bags out.  None of the bags were tagged and all were picked up.  She 
suggested sending Montgomery Trucking a reminder of the pick-up policy.   
 
Oktoberfest/Country Fair – Painter thanked the Lions Club for a very successful Oktoberfest 
and thanked everyone who made Country Fair a success.   
 
Department Head Reports  – Painter thanked the department heads for their reports.  They help 
to keep everyone informed on what is happening.   
 
New City Hall  – Painter reported she had a chance to visit the new city hall.  It is very cool and is 
coming along nicely.  It is nice to see how much of the building was original.  The addition of the 
skylights is a very nice addition.   
 
Country Fair  – Lincoln thanked Public Works, City Staff, Police Department and anyone who 
made this past weekend a success.  The weather was great and a good time was had by all.  
There were lots of people and people were buying.   
 
Kayak Park  – Lincoln stated his view is if a business comes in and is using it, it is a good 
promotion of the town.  They have the right to do that.  Lincoln stated he personally doesn’t see 
this being any different than an artist painting a picture on a city sidewalk and turning around and 
selling it.  As long as they don’t leave their vehicles there over night, Lincoln stated he has no 
problem with them using the area.   
 
Country Fair  – Kieffer commended the law enforcement personnel for doing a good job keeping 
the traffic moving over the weekend.   
 
Water Tower  – Greene questioned if we planned to screen and secure the water tower area.   
 
Parking  – Greene felt the volunteers in the police force did a nice job over the weekend.  He felt 
some visitors left because they couldn’t find a place to park.   
 
13C-0398 – CITY ADMINISTRATOR’S REPORT  
 
Pump Station  – The pump station is complete and operational.  The generator was installed two 
weeks ago.  They did a wet run and it was incredible how much water was pumped through the 
system.   
 
Street Paving  – Street paving is continuing.  The alleys are done on Elk Street.  We are currently 
1 year ahead of schedule on the alleys.  Division and Hickory Streets will be done this week.   

Page 5 of 33



Regular Board Meeting     14 October 2013 
 

4 

 
Electronics Recycling  – Staff is currently working on a contract with a new company for 
electronics recycling.  The recycling has been moved to the old Waste Water Treatment Plan site.  
The new company will take TV’s.  The company is out of the Rockford area and it is a free 
service.  They will provide the container.  Reports they have are that 60-65 percent of the weight 
they recycle is TV’s.   
 
Country Fair  – Staff did a good job preparing for Country Fair.  He added the real people that 
make it happen are Ron and Pat Smith.  Nobody is more organized than them.  Moran advised 
he has referred people planning events to Ron and Pat for advice on how to organize them.     
 
13C-0399 – MAYOR’S REPORT 
 
Oktoberfest and Country Fair  – Both events were a great success.  Mayor Renner thanked the 
volunteers who helped out with both.   
 
Kayak Park  – Mayor Renner stated he knows there has been concern expressed about the use 
of the west side boat launch by a private business.  Staff has reviewed this issue in recent weeks 
and he read the following summary: 
 

• Launching by Fever River Outfitters has occurred at the ramp for the past 
decade. 

• We are not aware of any regulations that would prevent the business from using 
the launch. 

• When complaints were received this summer, the city examined the operations 
against the code of ordinances.  As a result, the city requested Fever River 
cease scooter training in the city parking lot, remove the sign and trailer from the 
Gazette lot, and move the vans and trailers from the city parking lot every 24 
hours.  Fever River complied with the requests.   

• Fever River does not conduct transactions on city property.  They have two 
business locations in the city where the transactions are conducted.  Property tax 
and sales tax are derived from the business.   

• If there is concern about the use of the boat launch and parking lot, the city 
council could review how the boat launch and/or lot is used by the public, 
including businesses, and create regulations to manage or prohibit certain uses.   
 

13C-0400 - ADJOURNMENT 
 
Motion :  Lincoln moved, seconded by Kieffer, to adjourn.   
 
Discussion :  None.   
 
Roll Call :  AYES: Bernstein, Greene, Kieffer, Lincoln, Painter, Renner 
  NAYS: None 
  ABSENT:  Fach 
            
  The motion carried. 
                       
The meeting adjourned at 6:50 p.m. 
 
 
Respectfully submitted, 
 

 
Mary Beth Hyde 
City Clerk 

Page 6 of 33



CITY OF GALENA, ILLINOIS 
                                        312 ½ North Main Street, Galena, Illinois 61036 

1 

 

 

 

 

MEMORANDUM 

 

TO:  Honorable Mayor Renner and City Council 

FROM:  Mark Moran, City Administrator   

DATE:  October 22, 2013 

RE:  Stray Dog Pick-up Contract 

 

 

Each year the city contracts with the Jo Daviess County Animal Control Department for stray dog 
pick-up services within the city limits.  To help fund the service, a $70.00 fee is charged to the city 
each time the Animal Control Warden is called by the Police Department to capture a stray dog.  
When its owner claims a captured animal, the city is reimbursed the release fee up to $70.00.  The 
contract proposed by the county is unchanged from last year.   
 
Some stray dogs are collected by our Police Department, detained by the city, and claimed by the 
owner before Animal Control transfers the animal to the county kennel.  The city incurs costs in 
these instances, including kennel maintenance, food, and personnel to capture and monitor the 
animal.  The city charges a $50 fee when an owner claims a dog that has been detained by the city 
for running at large.   
 
I recommend you authorize the execution of the Stray Dog Contract. 
 

Page 7 of 33



Page 8 of 33



Page 9 of 33



Page 10 of 33



 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 

 

Ordinance #0-13-______ 

 

AN ORDINANCE PROVIDING FOR THE VACATION OF A PART OF  

BRANCH STREET, ELM STREET, SLAUGHTER STREET,  

AND AN UNNAMED RIGHT-OF-WAY 

________________________________________________________________ 

 

 

 WHEREAS, the City of Galena finds that the public interest will be served 

pursuant to 65 ILCS 5/11-91-1 et seq. by vacating part of Branch Street, Elm Street, 

Slaughter Street, and an unnamed street legally described on Exhibit “A” and totaling 

2.351 acres.     

 

 WHEREAS, Amber and Sam Roti (the “Owners”), of 3935 N. Council Hill Road, 

Galena, Illinois, are owners of property abutting unopened sections of Branch Street, 

Elm Street, Slaughter Street, and an unnamed street in the City of Galena; and 

 

 WHEREAS, the Owners petitioned the Galena City Council to vacate 2.351 acres 

of the subject street right-of-ways in order to add the property to the adjacent property 

of the Owners; and 

 

 WHEREAS, the subject right-of-way is fully described on Exhibit “A” Vacation 

Plat, attached hereto. 

 

 WHEREAS, the Owners desire to acquire an interest in the real property subject 

to the vacation; and 

 

 WHEREAS, surrounding property owners and the public at large were notified of 

the request to vacate and invited to a public hearing before the city council conducted 

on December 26, 2012; and 

 

 WHEREAS, the City of Galena finds that it is expedient for the public good to 

vacate said portion of Branch Street, Elm Street, Slaughter Street, and an unnamed 

street and that no public interest will be subserved by vacating the portions of the 

streets; and 

Page 11 of 33



2 

 

 

 WHEREAS, a professionally conducted appraisal of the property to be vacated 

established the fair market value of the property as $10,500.00.  The City of Galena 

agrees to vacate said property to the Owners for a price of $10,500.00; and   

 

 NOW THEREFORE, BE IT ORDAINED and enacted by the City of Galena, that all of 

that certain portion of real property situated in the City of Galena and being more 

particularly described on Exhibit “A” IS HEREBY VACATED and title shall be vested in 

Amber and Sam Roti, their successors or assigns. 

 

 SECTION I: All of that certain portion of real property situated in the City of 

Galena and being more particularly depicted in Exhibit “A” IS HEREBY VACATED to 

Amber and Sam Roti upon payment of $10,500.00 and the property interest in the right-

of-way shall vest to the purchaser’s successors or assigns. 

 

 SECTION 2:  It is further directed that the street right-of-way described in 

Exhibit “A” be stricken from the City street plat. 

 

 SECTION 3:   The City of Galena reserves an easement over, under and through 

the vacated property for future uses.  The vacation of said parcel is subject to the 

rights of all public utilities in said parcel, rights-of-way and easements necessary or 

desirable for installing or continuing public service in said street and the person or 

parties requesting such vacation shall be responsible to said public utilities for any 

vacating, rearrangement or relocating costs in the event the same are necessary 

without any costs to the City of Galena, its successors or assigns.  The utility easement 

shall be to the benefit of the City of Galena, and assignable by the City of Galena to 

other providers of utilities, for the installation of utilities either above or below grade.  

No permanent structures shall be located by the Owners, their successors or assigns, 

on the easement. 

 

 SECTION 4:    By means of the conveyance of the subject property to the 

Owners, the City of Galena forever relinquishes any and all responsibility or liability for 

said property and any improvements to said property, excepting any utilities owned 

now or in the future by the City of Galena. 

 

 SECTION 5:   All ordinances or parts of ordinances conflicting with the 

provisions of this ordinance are hereby repealed. 

 

  

Page 12 of 33



3 

 

SECTION 6   Passed on this 14th day of October, 2013, in open Council. 

 

  AYES:     NAYS: 

 

          

 

 

 

          __________________________________ 

             TERRY RENNER, MAYOR 

 

 

ATTEST: 

 

 

_____________________________ 

  MARY BETH HYDE, CITY CLERK 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Prepared by and return to: 

Joseph E. Nack 

Attorney for City of Galena 

312 ½ N. Main Street 

Galena, IL 61036 

 

Page 13 of 33



 
 

Ordinance #-13-_____ 

 

AN ORDINANCE APPROVING THE PURCHASE OF REAL ESTATE IN PART OF BLOCKS 6 & 11, 

YOUNG’S ADDITION, CITY GALENA, ILLINOIS, FOR STREET RIGHT-OF-WAY 

 

  

 WHEREAS, the City of Galena, Illinois (hereinafter, “the City”), is a municipal corporation 

operating under the laws of the State of Illinois, in Jo Daviess County, Illinois; and 

 

 WHEREAS, the City, pursuant to Section 11-76.1-1 of the Illinois Municipal Code (65 ILCS 

5/11-76.1-1), has the power to purchase real property for public purpose; and 

 

 WHEREAS, the City has determined that a .0491 acre parcel and a 1.263 acre parcel 

(“the Property”), both owned by Amber and Sam Roti (“the Seller”), should be acquired by the 

City for City purposes, including right-of-way for Dewey Avenue and Council Hill Road; and  

 

 WHEREAS, an appraisal of land to be vacated by the City and adjacent to the Property 

was commissioned by the Seller and the City for the purpose of establishing the fair market 

value of the Property as well as the property to be vacated; and    

 

 WHEREAS, based on the appraisal, the City and the Seller have determined the fair 

market value of the Property to be $7,833; and  

 

 WHEREAS, the City has agreed to purchase and the Seller has agreed to sell the property 

described as a “Part of Blocks 6 & 11, Young’s Addition, City of Galena, Illinois, Jo Daviess 

County”, for an amount of $7,833, pursuant to a Real Estate Contract for Purchase (the 

“Contract”) a copy of which is attached hereto and incorporated herein as Exhibit “A”; and 

 

 WHEREAS, the Galena City Council has determined that the purchase of the Property by 

the City and its use for City purposes, including street right-of-way, will provide benefit to the 

public in perpetuity. 

 

 THEREFORE, BE IT ORDAINED by the City Council of the City of Galena, Jo Daviess 

County, Illinois, as follows: 

 

SECTION I:  The recitals contained above in the preamble of this ordinance are hereby 

incorporated herein by reference, the same as if set forth in this section of this ordinance 

verbatim, as findings of the City Council of the City of Galena, Illinois. 

   

  SECTION II:  The Contract for the purchase of the Property is hereby adopted. 

 

  SECTION III:  The Mayor is hereby authorized and directed to sign the Contract on behalf 

of the City. 

 

              SECTION IV:  This Ordinance shall take full force and effect upon adoption. 

Page 14 of 33



 

YEAS:    NAYS: 

 

PASSED by the City Council and APPROVED by the Mayor this  ______________ day of 

________________________, 2013. 

 

 

                                                   ___________________________________ 

      TERRY RENNER, MAYOR 

 

ATTEST: 

________________________________ 

Mary Beth Hyde, City Clerk 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Page 15 of 33



CITY OF GALENA, ILLINOIS 
                                        312 ½ North Main Street, Galena, Illinois 61036 

Telephone: 815-777-1050     •     Facsimile: 815-777-3083     •     www.cityofgalena.org 

  
MEMORANDUM 

TO:  Honorable Mayor Renner, City Council and City Administrator, Mark Moran 

FROM:  Matt Oldenburg, Zoning Administrator 

DATE:  October 23, 2013 

RE: Cal. No. 13A-02, Applicant & Owner: Daniel Balocca –125 South Prospect Street, Galena, 

IL 61036.  Request for Text Amendment to Zoning Ordinance Table 154.403.1 Permitted 

Land Uses to amend Low Density Residential District to allow for Public 

Accommodations, Small Inns to operate by Special Use Permit only. 

 

Summary: 

 

On July 10, 2013, the Zoning Board heard and made a recommendation to Council that the request for the text 

amendment be denied.  The Board considered the 7 approval criteria for a text amendment, as required in 

§154.920(C), when making this recommendation. 

 

On July 22, 2013, the City Council heard and discussed Item No. 13C-0296, which was a resolution from the 

Zoning Board to deny the request from Daniel Balocca for a text amendment to allow Small Inns in Low 

Density Residential District by Special Use Permit only.  A vote was taken for the motion to return the item to 

the Zoning Board for reconsideration of the text amendment. 

 

On August 14, 2013, the Zoning Board reconsidered and made a positive recommendation to the Council that 

the amendment be approved to allow Small Inns in a Low Density Residential District by Special Use Permit 

only. 

 

On August 26, 2013, the City Council tabled the request due to a question of procedure regarding the size of 

the published notice that appeared in the Galena Gazette on June 25, 2013.  The size of that notice was the 

standard public notice size, and instead, it should be a quarter-page size per §154.920(E)(2)(a). 

 

On September 4, 2013, the Zoning Administrator sent a memo to the Council and Mayor regarding the Staff’s 

determination that notice should be considered as substantially compliant and asked them to proceed with 

their decision to approve, conditionally approve or deny the text amendment at their next meeting on 

September 9, 2013. 

 

On September 9, 2013, the Council directed the Zoning Administrator to re-run the public notice ad in the 

Galena Gazette in the quarter-page size to give proper notice per the ordinance.  They also directed that the 

Zoning Board re-open the public hearing to ensure the opportunity for anyone to be heard that didn’t receive 

Page 16 of 33



2 of 3 

proper notice of the prior hearing.  The public notice appeared in the Galena Gazette on September 18, 2013 

in a quarter-page ad with a large border. 

 

At the Zoning Board meeting on October 9, 2013, a public hearing regarding the text amendment request was 

held.  The ZBA reconsidered and made a negative recommendation to the Council that the amendment be 

denied with a vote of 3 ayes, 2 nays and 1 recused. 

 

Approval Criteria & Recommendation: 

 

In order to maintain internal consistency within this code and on the zoning map, proposed amendments to the 

text and zoning map must be consistent with the purposes stated herein. 

In determining whether the proposed amendment shall be approved, the following factors shall be 

considered: 

               (1)     Whether the existing text or zoning designation was in error at the time of adoption; 

               (2)     Whether there has been a change of character in the area or throughout the city due to 

installation of public facilities, other zone changes, new growth trends, deterioration, development 

transitions, etc.; 

               (3)     Whether the proposed rezoning is compatible with the surrounding area and defining 

characteristics of the proposed zoning district or whether there may be adverse impacts on the capacity or 

safety of the portion of street network influenced by the rezoning, parking problems, or environmental 

impacts that the new zone may generate such as excessive storm water runoff, water, air or noise pollution, 

excessive nighttime lighting, or other nuisances; 

               (4)     Whether the proposal is in conformance with and in furtherance of the implementation of the 

goals and policies of the Comprehensive Plan, other adopted plans, and the policies, intents and requirements 

of this code, and other city regulations and guidelines; 

               (5)     Whether adequate public facilities and services are available or will be made available 

concurrent with the projected impacts of development in the proposed zone; 

               (6)     Whether there is an adequate supply of land available in the subject area and the surrounding 

community to accommodate the zoning and community needs; or 

               (7)     Whether there is a need in the community for the proposal and whether there will be benefits 

derived by the community or area by the proposed rezoning. 

§154.920 (D) The Zoning Administrator and Zoning Board of Appeals shall make recommendations and the 

City Council shall take final action. 

Page 17 of 33



3 of 3 

(1) When the Zoning Board of Appeals or City Council deems it necessary or expedient, additional 

property in the zoning district may be considered for a zoning change provided that this additional property 

is also addressed in the public hearing notice, in accordance with section 154.919 (F). 

(2) In the event of a written protest against a proposed amendment signed and acknowledged by the 

owners of 20% of the frontage proposed to be altered or by the owners of 20% of the frontage immediately 

adjoining or across the alley or rear line therefrom or by the owners of 20% of the frontage directly opposite 

the frontage proposed to be altered as to such regulations or zoning district and filed with the City Clerk, 

such amendment shall not be passed except by the favorable vote of two-thirds of all of the selected 

members of the City Council. 

 

Page 18 of 33



Cal. No. 13A-02 1
 

      
 

Resolution No. ______________ 
 

ZONING BOARD OF APPEALS 
 

DETERMINATION & RECOMMENDATION TO THE CITY COUNCIL 
OF THE CITY OF GALENA 

 
REGARDING 

 
 
CALENDAR NUMBER: Cal. No. 13A-02 
 
 
APPLICATION BY:  Daniel Balocca, 125 S. Prospect St., Galena, IL 61036 
 
 
FOR:    Request for Text Amendment to Zoning Ordinance Table 

154.403.1 Permitted Land Uses to amend Low Density Residential 
District to allow for Public Accommodations, Small Inns to operate 
by Special Use Permit.   

 
PROCEDURES 
 
Pursuant to law, a public hearing was held by the Galena Zoning Board of Appeals regarding this 
matter on July 10, 2013.  The hearing was advertised in an edition of the Galena Gazette that was 
available to the general public between 15 and 30 days prior to the hearing. Letters were sent out 
to notify property owners within 250 feet of subject property of the request and public hearing 
date.  They were invited to testify if they so desired.  A quorum of the Board was present at the 
hearing in which the subject application and materials were reviewed and all persons were heard 
who desired to testify.  A second hearing was held by the Galena Zoning Board of Appeals 
regarding this matter on October 9, 2013, by direction of the City Council due to a question in 
adequacy of notice that was published in the Galena Gazette for the first hearing.  A quarter-page 
sized advertisement appeared in the Galena Gazette that was available to the general public 
between 15 and 30 days prior to the second hearing. 
 
NATURE OF APPLICATION 
 
The applicant is requesting to amend Zoning Ordinance Table 154.403.1 Permitted Land Uses to 
allow for Public Accommodations, Small Inns to operate by Special Use Permit only.  The subject 
property is currently operating by Special Use Permit as a Bed & Breakfast in a Low Density 
Residential District.  The property has frontage on S. Prospect Street and S. High Street. The 
property is located inside of the City’s Historic District.  The applicant is proposing to allow 

Page 19 of 33



Cal. No. 13A-02 2
 

Small Inns in LDR because adaptive uses for larger, historic residential buildings are needed to 
help reduce the burden of maintaining such important structures.  Inns benefit the City by adding 
to tax revenues and they are good hosts to our visitors.  Currently, 4 Small Inns exist in Low 
Density Residential Districts. 
 
Lands to the North are zoned Low Density Residential and include residential and Bed & 
Breakfast uses.  Lands to the South are zoned Low Density Residential and include residential and 
Bed & Breakfast uses.  Lands to the East are zoned Low Density Residential and include 
residential, Galena Fire Department, Turner Hall and Grace Episcopal Church.  Lands to the West 
are zoned Low Density Residential and include residential and St. Matthew’s Church. 
 
The Low Density Residential District is intended to permit development which primarily has a 
detached, single family community character.  Density and intensity standards for this district are 
designed to ensure that the Low Density Residential District shall serve as a designation which 
preserves and protects the residential community character of its area.  Residential development 
with a Maximum Gross Density of 7 dwelling units per gross acre is available within this district.  
This property is .65 acres and meets the density and bulk standards.   
 
If amended, Small Inn use would be allowed by Special Use Permit only.  Currently, only Bed & 
Breakfast Accommodations are allowed in Low Density Residential by Special Use Permit only.  
Over the past several years, Mr. Balocca and the City of Galena have sought to preserve and 
restore the Carriage House back to appropriate condition levels.  Rezoning and subdivision of the 
property have been considered in the past by the Zoning Board as Concept Plans with no action 
requested or taken.  The current proposal of text amendment would allow large Bed & Breakfasts 
in LDR with similar potential to apply for Special Use Permits to upgrade to Small Inns.   
 
PUBLIC SUPPORT AND/OR OBJECTIONS 
 
� The applicant/owner spoke in favor of the request.  The applicant stated that he is proposing 

an adaptive use to allow Small Inns in Low Density Residential Districts by Special Use 
Permit only.  This Special Use Permit will have a positive effect for a limited few other large 
Bed & Breakfasts.  Currently, 4 Small Inns already exist in LDR, they provide extra tax 
revenue to the City and act as good hosts to our visitors.  Additionally, the City amended the 
Small Inns description in §154.406 this past December to include the language of historic 
residential structures, thereby acknowledging that Small Inns can harmoniously exist amongst 
residential uses.  He feels that he is carrying-out the rest of the process that should have been 
included with that previous amendment, by allowing Small Inns in residential districts. 

� Adam Johnson spoke in support of the request.  He stated that Small Inns, allowed by Special 
Use Permits create mechanisms to help maintain our important, historic structures.  He 
believes that this amendment is consistent with our Comprehensive Plan and that we need to 
adapt our ordinance to the conditions that have developed since its last adoption.  Special Use 
Permits have mechanisms to give the Board discretion and allow them to conditionally grant 
approval of such requests. 

Page 20 of 33



Cal. No. 13A-02 3
 

� Anna Hemm spoke in support of the request.  She stated that if you look around town, we 
have several outbuildings that are very rare to find anywhere else in this country.  They are 
deteriorating, being destroyed, and she is amazed that the City doesn’t try to save them.  She 
lives across from the Victorian Mansion and has no problems with it and doesn’t see a 
negative impact in the neighborhood.  She is all about our historical buildings and is strongly 
in favor of this amendment. 

� Carter Newton spoke in favor of the request.  He stated that he covered ZBA meetings in his 
earlier years as a reporter and has followed these issues ever since.  He cited the Rainbow 
Ridge proposal on Park Avenue and the controversy it had, at the time, of increasing the 
intensity in the neighborhood, as well as when the B&B’s were starting along that street.  
After the dust settled, there were no complaints amongst the neighbors or negative impacts 
and all is well.  He believes guest accommodations, such as B&B’s and Small Inns, attract 
visitors and provide other benefits to the community.  He is in favor of this amendment. 

� Bill Fawell spoke in favor of the request.  He believes the amendment will give people the 
opportunity to maintain their historic homes and outbuildings.  If we do not change, we will 
lose them forever. 

� Rick Pariser spoke in objection to the request.  He asked the ZBA to protect his rights as a 
resident along High Street, to deny an increase in rooms in residential districts.  He stated that 
more isn’t better and that we are encroaching on the residents’ rights. 

� Richard Luther spoke in objection to the request.  He stated his background in Planning in CA 
and IA. He stated that there may be adverse effects from allowing such uses that we haven’t 
thought about yet.  He requests the ZBA denies or tables the request and conduct a study of 
the effects of allowing commercial use in a residential district.  He would volunteer his 
services to conduct the study. 

� James Wirth spoke in objection to the request.  He cited §154.005 Purpose of the Zoning 
Ordinance – (c) …to protect and preserve the character, value and stability of the residential, 
business, industrial, agricultural and public areas within the City.  He gave an analogy of why 
people wouldn’t want to move here if we allowed commercial uses in residential districts. 

� Daniel Balocca rebutted that B&B’s are a commercial use according to our ordinance and that 
they already exist in residential districts. 

 
APPLICABLE SECTIONS OF THE ZONING ORDINANCE 
 
� Article 1, Section 154.015 defines Guest Accommodations / Small Inns. 
� Article 2, Section 154.201 defines the characteristics of the Low Density Residential District. 
� Article 4, Section 154.403 Table 154.403.1 regulates the location of land uses to specific 

zoning districts. 
� Article 4, Section 154.406 provides the detailed land use descriptions and regulations for each 

land use/type. 
� Article 9, Section 154.920 sets forth the Review Criteria for Zoning Code Amendments and 

Rezoning 
 
 
 

Page 21 of 33



Cal. No. 13A-02 4
 

DETERMINATION 
 
Based upon the facts in this case, the Zoning Board of Appeals does find and conclude that the 
request by Daniel Balocca for a Text Amendment as described above should be denied for the 
following reasons: 
 
1. The Board considered the Review Criteria for Text Amendments given in Section 154.920.  A 

majority of the Board Members that voted do not believe that the request meets the criteria 
listed.   

2. Approving the amendment would potentially create an increase of requests from other B&B’s 
in residential districts to become Small Inns. 

 
RECOMMENDATION 
 
NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED that this Zoning Board of Appeals does recommend 
to the City Council of the City of Galena that this request by Daniel Balocca, for a Text 
Amendment as described above should be denied as proposed in the original application. 
 
PASSED AND APPROVED this 9th day of October, A.D. 2013, by the Galena Zoning Board of 
Appeals by a vote of 3 ayes, 2 nays, 0 absent, 0 abstain, and 1 recused. 
 
 
 
 
      _______________________________ 
      John Rosenthal, Chairperson 
 

Page 22 of 33



Page 23 of 33



 

City of Galena – CDAP Targeted Area Income Survey Proposal 

Third and Rives Street Sanitary Sewer Extension Project                   

Community Funding & Planning Services                               October 2013 

 

City of Galena 

Proposal for a Targeted Area Income Survey 
 

The City of Galena has requested a proposal from Community Funding & Planning Services for 

the completion of a targeted area income survey to determine if a specific area is eligible to 

apply for Community Development Assistance Program (CDAP) grants offered through the 

Illinois Department of Commerce & Economic Opportunity (DCEO).  Galena has secured CDAP 

grant funds in the past. 

 

In order for a specific area within the City to be eligible to apply for any of the DCEO grant 

programs, a targeted area income survey is needed to determine and document the low-to-

moderate income households.  At least 51% of the households must meet the low-to-moderate 

income criteria.  And, at least a 75% survey response rate is needed.  The income survey results 

are good for five years. 

 

Community Funding & Planning Services (CFPS) can assist the City with completing the targeted 

area income survey to meet the DCEO guidelines, and will act as a third party providing 

confidentiality to the information secured.   

 

Proposed Scope of Work: 

CFPS proposes to utilize the following summary of the work associated with conducting the 

income survey: 

 

1. Create a map of the targeted area and provide DCEO with the map and a letter 

requesting that a targeted area survey be completed (secure DCEO approval)  

2. Create the income survey form with the appropriate income limits for the City (secure 

DCEO approval) 

3. Secure contact information for properties within the targeted area 

4. Create a cover letter explaining the project to be provided with the survey form  

5. Secure completed income survey forms from as many of the residents in the targeted 

area as possible (at least secure a 75% response rate) 

6. Analyze survey results 

o Prepare the income survey worksheet and the income survey summary sheet 

7. Utilizing targeted area map, input the income survey results onto map  

8. Provide the completed surveys, the survey results worksheets and map to DCEO for 

review/approval 

 

Proposed Fee: 

The fee associated with conducting the targeted area income survey will be $425.00, and will 

be invoiced upon completion of the targeted area survey.  There is no guarantee that the 

targeted area survey will meet the low-to-moderate income guidelines upon completion.    

 

Proposed Timeframe: 

The timeframe for completion of the income survey is estimated to take one month. 

Page 24 of 33



 

City of Galena – CDAP Public Infrastructure Grant Write Proposal 

Third and Rives Street Sanitary Sewer Extension Project                   

Community Funding & Planning Services                               October 2013 

 

City of Galena 

Proposal for a Community Development Assistance Program 

Public Infrastructure Grant Application 
 

 

If the City of Galena is successful with the targeted area income survey project, the City should consider 

applying for a Community Development Assistance Program (CDAP) Public Infrastructure construction 

grant.  Community Funding & Planning Services (CFPS) is providing a proposal for the preparation and 

submittal of a CDAP Public Infrastructure grant from the Illinois Department of Commerce & Economic 

Opportunity (DCEO).    The project components of the CDAP grant application entail the extension of 

sanitary sewer services to 13 properties in the Third and Rives Street project area.   

 

Proposed Scope of Work: 

The CDAP grant write application will be done in accordance with the DCEO guidelines.  CFPS proposes 

to prepare and submit a CDAP Public Facilities grant application utilizing the following scope of work:   

 

• Correspondence with DCEO regarding the City’s grant application project components 

• Utilize data gathered from the targeted area income survey recently completed  

• Correspondence with DCEO requesting written approval on the use of the City’s targeted area  

income survey results and a copy of the approved income survey worksheet 

• Gather information in support of the City’s application: 

o Equalized Assessed Valuation and City’s tax rate; maps; required tax forms 

o Most recent audited financial statement 

• Work with City engineer to gather information: 

o On the problems that exist; who is most affected and how severely 

o What local efforts have taken place to resolve the problem 

o Updated cost estimates to address problem  

• Prepare ‘Problem Statement’, ‘Budget Narrative’ and ‘Project Readiness’ summaries 

• Prepare for City’s signature all resolutions, certifications, application forms and notices as may be 

required 

• Review Financial Project Sources and Uses  

• Conduct Environmental Review per 24 CRF Part 58 and send letters to four state agencies; prepare 

Environmental Status Checklist 

• Review draft CDAP grant application with City Administrator 

• Coordinate with City on date for public hearing 

o Prepare meeting notes, newspaper notice and advertise for public hearing 

o Conduct required public hearing 

o Provide electronic copy of meeting notes to City Clerk 

• Complete CDAP Public Infrastructure application; submit appropriate number of hard copies of 

the application and one electronic copy to DCEO and provide one hard copy to the City 

 

Proposed Fee: 

The fee associated with writing the City’s CDAP Public Infrastructure Grant application will be $4,000, 

and will be invoiced upon completion and submittal of the CDAP application to DCEO. 

 

Proposed Timeframe: 

The CDAP Public Infrastructure grant application will be submitted to DCEO by February 14, 2014, which 

is the application deadline date. 

Page 25 of 33



CITY OF GALENA, ILLINOIS 
                                        312 ½ North Main Street, Galena, Illinois 61036 

1 

 

 

 

 

MEMORANDUM 

 

TO:  Honorable Mayor Renner and City Council 

FROM:  Mark Moran, City Administrator   

DATE:  October 24, 2013 

RE:  City Hall Lighting 

 

As we progress with the new City Hall project we continue to look for opportunities for energy 

efficiency improvements that make economic sense.  For the past several weeks we have been 

studying possible improvements to the interior and exterior lighting plan.  I suggest you consider 

changing some of the planned lighting to high-efficiency LED.  

 

The current lighting plan includes many new LED recessed lights on the interior and exterior, and also 

includes reusing the existing florescent lights in the offices, common area, and back office rooms.  

There are 46 florescent light fixtures in the offices and common area that have been removed for 

construction and are planned to be reinstalled.  With the assistance of AES Lighting Group of 

Dubuque, we studied replacing the 46 high-use florescent lights with LED fixtures.  

 

The LED fixtures cost $205 each for a total cost of $9,430 for 46.  The LED fixtures are fully dimmable 

and would offer the possibility of “daylight harvesting”.  By installing two sensors in the common area 

the lighting would automatically dim according to the amount of natural lighting in the room.  In 

contrast to florescent lights that often begin to buzz or hum with age, LEDs are a quiet light source.    

 

The LED fixtures would have a total annual energy savings of approximately $730.  With about three 

times the expected life of florescent bulbs and no electronic ballasts, the LEDs could also be expected 

to save approximately $200 annually in maintenance, repair, and replacement costs.  With a total 

annual savings of $930, the LED fixtures would pay for themselves in about 10 years.  The actual 

savings could be greater considering the florescent lights are already eight years old.   

 

Architect, Jim Baranski, and our staff have attempted to be very thorough in evaluating LED as an 

option.  We have viewed samples of numerous fixtures of varying light intensity and quality.  We also 

toured several buildings in Dubuque where LED fixtures are installed.  Jim has consulted with a 

lighting engineer and lighting designer to arrive at a plan for efficiently using LEDs in most areas of 

the building.  

 

If you are interested in switching the 46 lights to LED, we would notify the contractor of the change 

and move forward with the preparation of the change order for approval at a future council meeting.       

Page 26 of 33



CITY OF GALENA Invoice Register Page:     1

Input Dates: 10/15/2013 - 10/31/2013 Oct 24, 2013  01:34PM

Invoice Seq Type Description Invoice Date Total Cost PO Number GL Account

ANDERSON, DARRIN & AMBER (119927)

101413 1 Invoice CREDIT BALANCE REFU 10/14/2013 28.98 98.115.0

Total ANDERSON, DARRIN & AMBER (119927): 28.98

AT & T (LOCAL) (103)

101513 1 Invoice POOL/PHONE 10/15/2013 13.86 59.55.552.00

101513 2 Invoice PUBLIC WORKS/PHONE 10/15/2013 27.62 01.41.552.00

101513 3 Invoice EMS/PHONE 10/15/2013 13.86 12.10.552.00

101513 4 Invoice POLICE/PHONE 10/15/2013 389.20 01.21.552.00

101513 5 Invoice FINANCE/PHONE 10/15/2013 195.24 01.13.552.00

101513 6 Invoice FLOOD CONTROL/PHON 10/15/2013 13.86 20.25.515.00

Total AT & T (LOCAL) (103): 653.64

AT & T LONG DISTANCE (119065)

101513 1 Invoice PUBLIC WORKS/LONG DI 10/15/2013 11.58 01.41.552.00

101513 2 Invoice FIRE DEPARTMENT/LON 10/15/2013 7.06 22.22.552.00

101513 3 Invoice EMS/LONG DISTANCE 10/15/2013 1.97 12.10.552.00

101513 4 Invoice POLICE/LONG DISTANCE 10/15/2013 93.22 01.21.552.00

101513 5 Invoice ADMINISTRATION/LONG  10/15/2013 459.83 01.13.552.00

Total AT & T LONG DISTANCE (119065): 573.66

BLACKTOP DRIVEWAY SERVICE (71)

38736 1 Invoice CRACK FILLING 10/15/2013 3,282.50 01.41.514.02

Total BLACKTOP DRIVEWAY SERVICE (71): 3,282.50

BROWN TRAFFIC PRODUCTS (853)

040844 1 Invoice SIGNAL MAINTENANCE 10/10/2013 110.93 15.41.514.06

Total BROWN TRAFFIC PRODUCTS (853): 110.93

CARD SERVICE CENTER (119840)

101513 1 Invoice POST OFFICE BOX RENT 10/15/2013 186.00 01.13.551.00

Total CARD SERVICE CENTER (119840): 186.00

CAVERN BEAT LTD. (THE) (119928)

101213 1 Invoice DEPOSIT REFUND 10/12/2013 200.00 58.54.929.00

Total CAVERN BEAT LTD. (THE) (119928): 200.00

CONMAT, INC. (1187)

86902 1 Invoice HOTMIX 10/16/2013 2,518.43 15.41.614.03

Total CONMAT, INC. (1187): 2,518.43

DEARBORN NATIONAL LIFE INS. CO (119500)

101513 1 Invoice EMPLOYEE LIFE INSURA 10/15/2013 260.53 01.13.452.00

Total DEARBORN NATIONAL LIFE INS. CO (119500): 260.53

Page 27 of 33



CITY OF GALENA Invoice Register Page:     2

Input Dates: 10/15/2013 - 10/31/2013 Oct 24, 2013  01:34PM

Invoice Seq Type Description Invoice Date Total Cost PO Number GL Account

DIXON, R. K.  CO. (1)

954711 1 Invoice COPIES MADE 10/16/2013 112.80 01.13.579.00

Total DIXON, R. K.  CO. (1): 112.80

DOIG, KATHLEEN (119339)

709708 1 Invoice MARKET HOUSE RESTR 10/22/2013 515.00 01.13.511.06

Total DOIG, KATHLEEN (119339): 515.00

GALENA ARC (850)

101813 1 Invoice COUNTRY FAIR PARKIN 10/18/2013 275.00 01.11.929.02

Total GALENA ARC (850): 275.00

GALENA CLIMATE CONTROL STORAGE (119906)

11 1 Invoice MONTHLY RENT FOR ST 10/28/2013 250.00 01.13.820.00

Total GALENA CLIMATE CONTROL STORAGE (119906): 250.00

GALENA GAZETTE (34)

00032431 1 Invoice PUBLISHING 10/10/2013 661.20 01.14.553.00

Total GALENA GAZETTE (34): 661.20

GALENA LIONS CLUB (119471)

100613 1 Invoice DEPOSIT REFUND 10/06/2013 250.00 17.52.929.00

Total GALENA LIONS CLUB (119471): 250.00

GALENA PUBLIC LIBRARY (93)

101513 1 Invoice LIBRARY REPLACEMENT  10/15/2013 1,470.32 16.14.913.00

Total GALENA PUBLIC LIBRARY (93): 1,470.32

GALL'S, INC. (712)

001077926 1 Invoice UNIFORMS/NATHAN 10/05/2013 91.99 01.21.471.15

001097474 1 Invoice UNIFORMS/NATHAN 10/10/2013 76.50 01.21.471.15

Total GALL'S, INC. (712): 168.49

GHS MUSIC BOOSTERS (119711)

101413 1 Invoice COUNTRY FAIR PARKIN 10/14/2013 2,115.00 01.11.929.02

Total GHS MUSIC BOOSTERS (119711): 2,115.00

HEALTHCARE SERVICE CORPORATION (118931)

101513 1 Invoice HSA/FAMILY/EMPLOYEE  10/15/2013 2,319.00 01.218.0

101513 2 Invoice PPO/BLUE CROSS BLUE  10/15/2013 388.00 01.218.0

101513 3 Invoice HEALTH INSURANCE 10/15/2013 18,969.69 01.13.451.00

101513 4 Invoice WESTEMEIER/INSURAN 10/15/2013 727.24 78.32.464.02

Total HEALTHCARE SERVICE CORPORATION (118931): 22,403.93

Page 28 of 33



CITY OF GALENA Invoice Register Page:     3

Input Dates: 10/15/2013 - 10/31/2013 Oct 24, 2013  01:34PM

Invoice Seq Type Description Invoice Date Total Cost PO Number GL Account

HEARTLAND FIRE & SECURITY (119499)

9460 1 Invoice FIRE ALARM MONITORIN 10/07/2013 263.40 58.54.511.00

Total HEARTLAND FIRE & SECURITY (119499): 263.40

IL ENVIRON. PROTECT. AGENCY (119041)

100213 1 Invoice EPA LOAN 10/02/2013 81,048.29 52.43.716.00

Total IL ENVIRON. PROTECT. AGENCY (119041): 81,048.29

J & R SUPPLY INCORPORATED (951)

1310910 1 Invoice STORM SEWER REPAIR 10/14/2013 14.00 01.41.514.06

1311136 1 Invoice GEAR ST. STORM SEWE 10/16/2013 1,095.00 01.41.514.06

Total J & R SUPPLY INCORPORATED (951): 1,109.00

JDWI (235)

38836 1 Invoice SENIOR TRANSPORTATI 09/30/2013 830.00 01.13.542.00

Total JDWI (235): 830.00

JO CARROLL ENERGY, INC. (397)

101513 1 Invoice ELECTRIC 10/15/2013 628.81 15.41.572.00

101513 2 Invoice PUBLIC WORKS/ELECTRI 10/15/2013 332.30 01.41.571.01

101513 3 Invoice PARKS/ELECTRIC 10/15/2013 327.69 17.52.571.01

101513 4 Invoice POOL 10/15/2013 484.95 59.55.571.01

Total JO CARROLL ENERGY, INC. (397): 1,773.75

JO DAVIESS COUNTY RADIO PATROL (593)

101413 1 Invoice RADIO PATROL-COUNTR 10/14/2013 914.25 01.21.540.01

Total JO DAVIESS COUNTY RADIO PATROL (593): 914.25

JO DAVIESS CTY HWY DEPT (653)

2253 1 Invoice STREET STRIPE 10/15/2013 797.54 01.41.514.01

Total JO DAVIESS CTY HWY DEPT (653): 797.54

JO DAVIESS CTY SHERIFF (116)

13-423 1 Invoice ID CARDS FOR ERIC, TO 10/01/2013 15.00 01.21.651.00

13-431 1 Invoice ID CARD FOR TIM WUEB 10/03/2013 5.00 01.21.651.00

Total JO DAVIESS CTY SHERIFF (116): 20.00

JOHN DEERE FINANCIAL (119690)

101513 1 Invoice BOOTS 10/15/2013 174.98 01.41.471.09

Total JOHN DEERE FINANCIAL (119690): 174.98

JOHNSON, AARON (119929)

102013 1 Invoice DEPOSIT REFUND 10/20/2013 200.00 58.54.929.00

Page 29 of 33



CITY OF GALENA Invoice Register Page:     4

Input Dates: 10/15/2013 - 10/31/2013 Oct 24, 2013  01:34PM

Invoice Seq Type Description Invoice Date Total Cost PO Number GL Account

Total JOHNSON, AARON (119929): 200.00

LAFAYETTE COUNTY HIGHWAY DEPT (119719)

093013 1 Invoice COLD PATCH 09/30/2013 560.00 15.41.614.00

Total LAFAYETTE COUNTY HIGHWAY DEPT (119719): 560.00

LAWSON PRODUCTS, INC. (627)

9301986644 1 Invoice OPERATING SUPPLIES 10/15/2013 84.73 01.41.652.00

Total LAWSON PRODUCTS, INC. (627): 84.73

LEXISNEXIS RISK DATA MGMT. INC (376)

1343164-201 1 Invoice INVESTIGATIONS PROG 09/30/2013 30.00 01.21.652.03

Total LEXISNEXIS RISK DATA MGMT. INC (376): 30.00

MAPLE, ROBERT (119926)

101513 1 Invoice CREDIT BALANCE REFU 10/15/2013 11.92 98.115.0

Total MAPLE, ROBERT (119926): 11.92

MAX-R (119483)

656681 1 Invoice BIKE TRAIL 10/17/2013 206.00 17.52.652.00

Total MAX-R (119483): 206.00

METLIFE SMALL BUSINESS CENTER (775)

101613 1 Invoice DENTAL INSURANCE 10/16/2013 1,797.91 01.13.451.01

Total METLIFE SMALL BUSINESS CENTER (775): 1,797.91

MEYER, TOM (804)

102213 1 Invoice BADGE WALLET 10/22/2013 28.48 01.21.471.15

Total MEYER, TOM (804): 28.48

MIDWEST BUSINESS PRODUCTS (38)

254127 1 Invoice COPIER LEASE 10/09/2013 230.59 01.21.512.03

Total MIDWEST BUSINESS PRODUCTS (38): 230.59

MORSE ELECTRIC, INC (69)

101356 1 Invoice TRAFFIC SIGNAL 10/08/2013 519.05 15.41.514.06

Total MORSE ELECTRIC, INC (69): 519.05

MOTOROLA SOLUTIONS - STARCOM (119812)

1129583020 1 Invoice MONTHLY RATE FOR ST 10/01/2013 10.00 01.21.549.00

Total MOTOROLA SOLUTIONS - STARCOM (119812): 10.00

Page 30 of 33



CITY OF GALENA Invoice Register Page:     5

Input Dates: 10/15/2013 - 10/31/2013 Oct 24, 2013  01:34PM

Invoice Seq Type Description Invoice Date Total Cost PO Number GL Account

MURRAY, B. L.  CO. INC. (135)

81187 1 Invoice CLEANUP 10/03/2013 169.12 17.52.652.00

Total MURRAY, B. L.  CO. INC. (135): 169.12

NICOR (151)

101513 1 Invoice MARKETHOUSE RESTRO 10/15/2013 28.14 01.13.511.06

101513 2 Invoice POOL-GAS 10/15/2013 80.74 59.55.571.02

Total NICOR (151): 108.88

NICOR (F) (118924)

101513 1 Invoice CITY HALL-GAS 10/15/2013 11.38 01.13.571.05

101513 2 Invoice GREEN STREET 10/15/2013 87.70 01.13.571.05

101513 3 Invoice POLICE-GAS 10/15/2013 29.40 01.21.571.05

101513 4 Invoice PUBLIC WORKS-GAS 10/15/2013 76.69 01.41.571.05

101513 5 Invoice FIRE DEPARTMENT-GAS 10/15/2013 84.45 22.22.571.05

101513 6 Invoice TURNER HALL-GAS 10/15/2013 377.25 58.54.571.05

Total NICOR (F) (118924): 666.87

PETITGOUT CORPORATION (689)

6992 1 Invoice BRIDGE LIGHTS REPAIR 10/18/2013 65.00 15.41.514.07

6993 1 Invoice JULIE LOCATE 10/18/2013 75.00 01.41.549.00

Total PETITGOUT CORPORATION (689): 140.00

PETTY CASH/POLICE DEPT. (163)

102313 1 Invoice MEALS/TRAINING 10/23/2013 37.83 01.21.562.00

Total PETTY CASH/POLICE DEPT. (163): 37.83

REDFEARN TREE SERVICE & NURS. (118895)

4780 1 Invoice REC PARK TREE 10/05/2013 265.00 17.52.820.06

Total REDFEARN TREE SERVICE & NURS. (118895): 265.00

SUPERIOR WELDING SUPPLY (181)

698060 1 Invoice SAFETY EQUIPMENT 10/02/2013 46.10 01.41.652.05

L4042602 1 Invoice WELDING SUPPLIES 10/05/2013 200.00 01.41.652.02

Total SUPERIOR WELDING SUPPLY (181): 246.10

TRI-STATE SCREEN PRINTING (119187)

11085 1 Invoice SIGNS 10/11/2013 53.00 01.41.614.04

11269 1 Invoice SIGNS 10/11/2013 32.00 01.41.652.04

11282 1 Invoice UNIFORMS/TIM 10/15/2013 13.65 01.21.471.15

Total TRI-STATE SCREEN PRINTING (119187): 98.65

UPS STORE GALENA, THE (1260)

100913 1 Invoice UPS SHIPPING 10/09/2013 11.25 01.21.551.00

100913 2 Invoice SHIPPING 10/09/2013 18.33 01.21.551.00

101013 1 Invoice TRAFFIC SIGNAL RETUR 10/10/2013 51.79 15.41.514.06

Page 31 of 33



CITY OF GALENA Invoice Register Page:     6

Input Dates: 10/15/2013 - 10/31/2013 Oct 24, 2013  01:34PM

Invoice Seq Type Description Invoice Date Total Cost PO Number GL Account

Total UPS STORE GALENA, THE (1260): 81.37

VALLEY PERENNIALS (118994)

10763 1 Invoice PLANTS GRANT PARK 10/10/2013 66.00 17.52.820.06

Total VALLEY PERENNIALS (118994): 66.00

VERIZON WIRELESS (316)

101513 1 Invoice VERIZON JET PACK FOR  10/15/2013 38.01 01.21.652.03

Total VERIZON WIRELESS (316): 38.01

WAL-MART COMMUNITY (CC) (1258)

101513 1 Invoice MISC. SUPPLIES 10/15/2013 72.05 01.13.651.02

101513 2 Invoice POLICE/MISC. SUPPLIES 10/15/2013 11.42 01.21.549.00

101513 3 Invoice OFFICE SUPPLIES 10/15/2013 92.79 01.21.651.00

101513 4 Invoice MISC. SUPPLIES 10/15/2013 63.82 01.41.652.00

Total WAL-MART COMMUNITY (CC) (1258): 240.08

WEBER PAPER COMPANY (40)

544923 1 Invoice JANITOR SUPPLIES 10/10/2013 121.02 01.13.511.06

Total WEBER PAPER COMPANY (40): 121.02

WEX BANK (CONNOCO) (119104)

101513 1 Invoice BUILDING-GAS 10/15/2013 83.39 01.46.655.00

101513 2 Invoice FIRE-GAS 10/15/2013 41.69 22.22.655.00

101513 3 Invoice PUBLIC WORKS-GAS 10/15/2013 409.36 01.41.655.00

101513 4 Invoice POLICE-GAS 10/15/2013 1,934.80 01.21.655.00

101513 5 Invoice PARKS-GAS 10/15/2013 262.96 17.52.655.03

101513 6 Invoice POLICE-GAS 10/15/2013 30.98 01.21.655.00

101513 7 Invoice PUBLIC WORKS-GAS 10/15/2013 30.97 01.41.655.00

101513 8 Invoice BUILDING-GAS 10/15/2013 30.97 01.46.655.00

101513 9 Invoice PARKS-GAS 10/15/2013 30.97 17.52.655.03

Total WEX BANK (CONNOCO) (119104): 2,856.09

WEX BANK (MURPHY) (119102)

101513 1 Invoice FIRE DEPARTMENT/GAS 10/15/2013 140.50 22.22.655.00

101513 2 Invoice PUBLIC WORKS/GAS 10/15/2013 1,263.74 01.41.655.00

Total WEX BANK (MURPHY) (119102): 1,404.24

WHITE, JUDY (1204)

12 1 Invoice TURNER HALL JANITOR 10/28/2013 350.00 58.54.536.00

Total WHITE, JUDY (1204): 350.00

Grand Totals: 133,535.56

Report GL Period Summary

Page 32 of 33



CITY OF GALENA Invoice Register Page:     7

Input Dates: 10/15/2013 - 10/31/2013 Oct 24, 2013  01:34PM

Vendor number hash: 3124141

Vendor number hash - split: 5630639

Total number of invoices: 63

Total number of transactions: 97

Terms Description Invoice Amount Net Invoice Amount

Open Terms 133,535.56 133,535.56

Grand Totals: 133,535.56 133,535.56

Page 33 of 33


	00.00 Agenda 10.28.13
	CALENDAR INFORMATION

	00.0407 Minutes 10.14.13
	01.0408 Stray Dog Pick-up Contract
	Stray Dog Pick-up Contract 2
	Stray Dog Pick-up Contract

	02.0409 Gateway Park Change Order #1
	03.0393 Roti Street Vacation Ordinance
	04.0410 Roti Purchase Ordinance
	05.0411 Small Inn Text Amendment
	matt 2
	matt fof

	06.0412 Third and Rives Project Grant Writing
	Galena proposal cover letter
	Third and Rives Grant
	Third and Rives Survey

	07.0413 City Hall Lighting
	08.0414 Warrants 10.28.13



